
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 10 November 2020 

 

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

 

On: Wednesday 18 November 2020 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all External Overview & Scrutiny meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will 

be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

To: Councillor P Pennington (Chair) 
Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: L Ford, S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, J McKenzie 
and S Newton 
 
Non elected Members: Mr P Topham 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Public Participation  

 15 minute period for public contributions 
 



 
 

 

 
 

3.  Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.  
 

4.   Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair  

6.   Draft Play Area Strategy (Pages 3 - 130) 

 To receive the report of the Economic Development Officer. 
 

7.   Exclusion Of The Public  

 The Chair to move:-  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 
 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


REPORT OF  Economic Development Officer 

To: External and Scrutiny 

Subject: Play Area Strategy 

Date: 18th November, 2020 Reference:  

 
 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     

To present the draft Torridge District Council’s Play Area Strategy for consideration 
and endorsement. 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

At a meeting of External Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting on 2/9/2020, it was 
advised that the initial draft of the document discussed required improvement in order that it 
would have a more strategic approach to how we protect our open spaces.  
 
In response to comments, TDC officers in conjunction with the Lead Member for Community, 
Culture and Leisure (Councillor Cottle-Hunkin), have adapted the report so that it should fully 
focus on the play areas and not all open spaces as these are well recognised in other 
strategies like the Green Infrastructure Strategy and the Playing Pitch Strategy. 
 
Also provided to members since the last committee meeting was another document (Play 
Area Condition Survey) that was produced by Tivoli (maintenance contractor), a draft of 
which had been provided to committee members in 2019 but had not been provided at the 
committee in September. This document contains the results of an extensive condition 
survey of all play areas in Torridge ownership.  
 
The overarching intention of the strategy is that is communicates clearly the role that the 
Council wishes to have in the provision of play and how we undertake to work in partnership 
with others.  Members are keen to ensure that there is a clear strategy for how to manage 
the play areas which Torridge District Council owns in order to ensure that resources can be 
utilised effectively, and investment appropriately targeted in order to provide the best 
possible strategic provision, whilst also enabling communities who are interested in taking 
control of their own play spaces. The strategy should also define the role th 
 

2. REPORT 

Why do we need this strategy?  
 
Without a clear strategy, we have no clear vision of where we are and where we want to be 
with the condition of our play areas. This is our core objective in developing the Play Area 
Strategy. TDC needs to focus on maintaining the excellent spaces we have in the area and 
improving certain sites so that our communities have space to enjoy where they feel safe 
and are able to go with family and friends to enjoy and take them away from pressures of 
everyday life. 

 Play Area - Play provision for our children is vital in their cognitive, physical and 
social development. Our role is to make sure that these sites are accessible and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



available as much as possible for our children to enjoy and develop but to 
concentrate on quality rather than quantity. 

 Equality - Recognise and show our commitment to equality by ensuring that all areas 
are accessible and therefore enjoyed by those with disabilities and by those that may 
not find traveling to other areas easy. 

 
The new draft of the Play Area Strategy outlines; 
 
Section 1 

  the importance of play for all within our communities 

 the importance of protecting our play areas 
 Section 2 (plus additional document) 

  a mapping exercise of Torridge District Council parks and an appraisal of their 
condition as of September 2019 plus any improvements made on certain sites since 
then. 

Section 3 

 a clear indication of site and timeline of when improvements are to be made by 
 clear recognition that Torridge District Council receives no funding for improving play 

areas but has a will to create and support local community groups in creating funding 
and helping to deliver safe and enjoyable play areas. 

  knock on effects of Covid-19 

 
Draft strategy key points 
 
Next steps required to enable the work to be completed 

- Update play area condition survey (urgent) 
- Include any amendments advised by Members following this meeting 

 
Moving Forward 

- Always engage with the parishes and its members as early as possible / before 
designs / proposals are finalised to establish their needs for each individual 
community but to manage expectations. 

- Establish maintenance and investment proposals for the management of Torridge 

facilities 

- Engage with the communities with the aim for them to take ownership of parks where 
appropriate. 

- Develop a genuine partnership approach, not just with local communities but also 
with experts such as Sport England, Active Devon etc. 

- Work towards implementing actions from as early 2021 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 

The Play Area Strategy is designed to ensure that spaces which are maintained by Torridge 
District Council are well managed and maintained, limiting the associated legal risks. 
 

Financial Implications 
The Play Area Strategy is designed to ensure that Torridge District Council’s finances can be 
used strategically to provide the best possible play experiences rather than being spread too 
thinly and undermining impact, whilst also allowing local communities to have a stronger 
influence over their local provision. This will involve long-term planning to ensure that 

Page 4



maintenance and equipment life-cycles are planned for to project future financial 
requirements. 
 Human Resources Implications 
The Play Area Strategy is designed to ensure that Torridge District Council’s internal team 
capacity can be used strategically to provide the best possible play and open space 
experiences rather than being spread too thinly and undermining impact, whilst also allowing 
local communities to have a stronger influence over their local provision. 
 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
Sustainability is at the heart of the natural capital approach within the Play Area Strategy. 
 
 

Equality/Diversity 
By ensuring that resources can be strategically targeted Torridge District Council will be able 
to invest appropriately in Play Areas to ensure that they can be accessible for all. 

 
Risk Management 

The Play Area Strategy is designed to ensure that spaces which are maintained by Torridge 
District Council’s are well managed and maintained, limiting the associated risks. 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
It is recognised in the North Devon & Torridge Green Infrastructure Strategy 2013-2031 
section 6) that play areas are in need of refurbishment and improvement across Torridge 
and that Victoria Park will be the ‘flagship play area’ for Torridge. 
From the same strategy, consultation did not identify any specific current demand for new 
parks and gardens provision. It is likely that large sized additional provisions of the country 
park, town common and accessible countryside affected this perception. 

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 

None 

Lead Member Views 

Date of Consultation -  

4. CONCLUSIONS 

Why is this work important? 
This work will provide Torridge District Council and the communities within the Torridge area, 
with a clear pathway for maintaining and developing the play areas within our area whilst 
also ensuring that finances can be used effectively and efficiently. We want our residents to 
be proud of where we live and to show off what we have for visitors to the area. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that members to endorse the Play Area Strategy (subject to any 
amendments required and when accompanied by all necessary additional information) and 
that it now progresses to Community and Resources Committee for adoption at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Consultations:    Date of consultation -  
     Officers consulted -  
Contact Officer:   Economic Development Officer 

Page 5



 

1 

 

 

 

Torridge Play Area 

Strategy 

2020 

 

 
 

Page 6



 

2 

 

 

Page 7



 

3 

 

 

Foreword – Required?? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Steve Hearse (Chief Executive of Torridge District Council) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

 

Councillor Cheryl Cottle-Hunkin 

Lead member for Community, Culture and Leisure 

 

(Statement) 

Page 9



 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sean Kearney statement 

Planning and economy manager 

(Statement) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

 

  Section 1  

 
 Glossary of terms 

 Introduction 

 Definition of play  

 Children’s right to play 

 Why is it important we have this strategy 

 National Play Strategy 

 Embedding the Play Strategy 

 Links to other strategies (playing pitch strategy, Green Infrastructure Strategy) 

Page 10



 

6 

 

 
 

Section 2  
 
Update on Torridge District Council’s Play Strategy 

 

Torridge District Council Current Provision  
Audit of Existing Open Space Assets  

 
 

The 2020 Lockdown effect  
 

Financials 
 

Capital Investments  
 

Funding Streams  
 

Grant Funding  
 

 

Section 3 – What Torridge District Council aims to do 
 
Policy & Strategy – The Way Forward 
TDC Mission statement?  
What will Torridge District Council do now 
The 2020 Lockdown effect  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 1 

Introduction 

Why is it important to have a Play Area Strategy? 
 
 
This strategy has been compiled to enable our young people to be able to enjoy safe play now and 
into the future. As such, this strategy seeks to develop and maintain a standard so that our young 
people can enjoy safe play. 
As a Council, we also recognise the importance of quality over quantity. It maybe that some play 
areas are best being managed by other organisations and local communities to ensure that main 
aims of safety and enjoyment of a play area are upheld.  
 

Page 11



 

7 

 

Torridge District Council will work in collaboration with and alongside other organisations and 
partners to ensure that the highest quality of play provision is available. This includes various 
departments within Torridge District Council working closely together to establish a clear plan of 
developing new play areas and maintaining the current areas. 
 
These departments will include: Economic Development, Planning, Property and Procurement and 
Finance. 

 

Play is an important part of a child’s life.  

Torridge District Council recognises how important children’s play is for their physical, mental and 

social development. It allows them to burn off built up energy but also to build relationships with 

friends, other young people away from the structured learning often given by the adults in their 

lives.  

Defining play  
 
Play England’s Charter for Children’s Play describes play as: ‘what children and young people do 
when they follow their own ideas and interests, in their own way, and for their own reasons.’ 
Play has also frequently been described as ‘what children and young people do when they are not 
being told what to do by adults’. 

Having time and space to play gives children the opportunity to meet and socialise with their 
friends, keeps them physically active, and gives the freedom to choose what they want to do. 

Research shows that play has many benefits for children, families and the wider community, as well 
as improving health and quality of life. Recent research suggests that children’s access to good play 
provision can: 

 increase their self-awareness, self-esteem, and self-respect 
 improve and maintain their physical and mental health 
 give them the opportunity to mix with other children 
 allow them to increase their confidence through developing new skills 
 promote their imagination, independence and creativity 
 offer opportunities for children of all abilities and backgrounds to play together 
 provide opportunities for developing social skills and learning 
 build resilience through risk taking and challenge, problem solving, and dealing with new 

and novel situations 
 provide opportunities to learn about their environment and the wider community. 

 
Evidence is also available that outlines wider benefits of play provision for families and 
communities, suggesting that: 

 parents can feel more secure knowing that their children are happy, safe and enjoying 
themselves 

 families benefit from healthier, happier children 
 buildings and facilities used by play services are frequently seen as a focal point for 

communities 
 it offers opportunities for social interaction for the wider community and supports the 

development of a greater sense of community spirit, promoting social cohesion 

Page 12

http://www.playengland.net/resource/charter-for-childrens-play/
http://www.playengland.org.uk/what-we-do/projects/adventure-into-sport/play-is-best-way-of-getting-children-active/


 

8 

 

 public outside spaces have an important role in the everyday lives of children and young 
people, especially as a place for meeting friends 

 parks and other green spaces are popular with adults taking young children out to play and 
for older children and young people to spend time together. 

 
 
Children’s right to play  
 
Children’s right to play, The right to play and informal recreation, for all children and young people 
up to 18 years of age, is contained in Article 31 of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, 
ratified by the UK government in 1991. The government has a duty under this convention to protect 
and promote play opportunities for all children and young people. 
Children Act (1989) Playgrounds in facilities which have been registered under the Act's 
requirements need to be safe and suitable for their purpose and meet relevant standards. 
 

National strategy 

In 2008, the first national Play Strategy set out the last government’s vision and commitments for 
better play opportunities in England. 

As well as focusing on the specific places where children play, like parks and green spaces, schools 
and children’s centres, the Play Strategy also considers how communities and neighbourhoods can 
become more child-friendly overall. 

The Play Strategy was published by the then Department for Children, Schools and Families. 

Charter for Children’s Play 

Posted on January 23, 2009 by Play England 

The Charter for Children’s Play sets out a vision for play. It aims to be a catalyst for individuals and 

organisations to examine and improve how they provide for children and young people’s play and 

informal recreation.  

The Charter sets out the abiding principles on which the play sector is founded and signing up to the 

Charter is a pre-requisite for all Play England members and staff. 

 

The Charter states: 

 Children have the right to play 

 Every child needs time and space to play 

 Adults should let children play 

 Children should be able to play freely in their local areas 

 Children value and benefit from staffed play provision 

 Children’s play is enriched by skilled playworkers 

 Children need time and space to play at school 

 Children sometimes need extra support to enjoy their right to play 

Page 13

https://www.playengland.org.uk/resource/charter-for-childrens-play/
https://www.playengland.org.uk/author/play-england/


 

9 

 

 

These statements shape the way Play England works, the projects we invest in, the campaigns we 

support – ours and others – and help us focus on the issues that matter. 

Embedding the Play Strategy 
 
In 2010 the last government published non-statutory guidance to assist local authorities and their 
partners in the planning needed to improve local play offers. The publication was designed to help 
local decision makers put children’s play at the heart of their local communities. It shows how 
planning and investing in local play space – and considering children’s needs within the wider 
environment – can benefit children, families and whole communities. 

The guidance is based on the publication of the same name, which Play England wrote and 
submitted to government following an open consultation in October 2009. Play England encouraged 
all agencies and professionals with a role in delivering the Play Strategy to respond. 

Linking local plans and current strategies 

It is important that we recognise that this work, although created by Torridge District Council, is part 

of wider plan. To do this successfully, we must incorporate the experience of other agencies and 

partners.  

Torridge District Council, in collaboration with North Devon District Council, has already created a 

Green Infrastructure Strategy (2013-2031) which concentrates on all the open spaces within the 

Torridge area. See appendix 1 

 
Research carried out to create the above strategy for 2013 – 2031 found the below action 
for play areas in Torridge is required. 
 

 Increase provision in areas that highlight a need for increased provision 

 Incorporate facilities for young adults/ teenagers in new provision. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The report also suggested that the main implications for deriving access standards are that walk 
times would be most appropriate for: 

 

 Parks and gardens 

 Natural areas 

 Amenity areas 

 Play areas for children 

 Teenage facilities 

 Allotments 

 Civic spaces 

 Grass pitches 

 Tennis courts 

Page 14



 

10 

 

 Green corridors 

 

In collaboration with North Devon District Council, there is a Playing Pitch Strategy (2017) which 

concentrates solely on what sports pitches there are in the area and how they will be monitored and 

developed over time. See appendix 2 

Torridge District Council will also follow guidance from the national Friends of the Earth policy 

(appendix 4.0). This recognises the importance of Green Space within our communities and created 

England wide analysis to show correlation between green space deprivation, income and race. The 

policy identifies the priority neighbourhoods most in need of green space investment if people in 

every part of the country are to enjoy and benefit from the multiple roles green space provide. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 2 

 

Torridge Play Areas – Current Provision 

Background 

Torridge District Council are responsible for the maintenance of 36 key sites within the district, 
although not all of them are owned by Torridge.  
 

Page 15



 

11 

 

Historically, some play areas have been handed over to Parish or other District Councils, or as a 
result of section 106 requirements have been developed or handed over to developers/Housing 
Associations under financial arrangements. 
  
Surveying sites took place from July to September 2019 and reflects the status of the sites at that 
time.  Any subsequent damage, repairs or replacements which arise after that date will not be 
reflected in this report.   
 

Play condition survey Full report – appendix 3.1 

All sites have been surveyed and the equipment available for use has been documented.  In some 
cases, all equipment is available for use, in others a significant amount of equipment is isolated or 
has been removed or not replaced.  On some sites, all equipment is available for use, but remaining 
equipment may be in a poor condition.  An average percentage has been used to calculate 
availability, but other factors may have been taken into account when assessing condition.   
All these factors will have influenced the overall rating. 

 

Summary of Play Condition Survey (PCS, September 2019) 

Introduction 

Torridge District Council contracted Tivoli (grounds maintenance provider) to audit the condition of 
all Torridge District Council play areas. 
 
The purpose of the PCS is to consider the current status of all Torridge District Council play areas and 
aims to identify the following detail:- 
• Maps showing the location of each play area within Torridge (only 22 sites shown in this PAS) 
• Inventory data for each location 
• Survey condition of current equipment 
• Provide a summary of current issues and planned works 
• Identify key priorities for repair 
• Document percentage of available play areas and voids 
• Identify priorities for capital funds investment 

 
 

 

Play area locations 

REFERENCE ADDRESS 

TP-01 Churchfields, Appledore 

TP-02 Bridge Plats Way, Bideford 

TP-03 Chestnut Drive, Bideford 

TP-04 Devonshire Park, Bideford 

TP-05 Geneva Court, Bideford 

TP-06 Old Town, Bideford 

TP-07  Skate Park, Bideford 

TP-08 Short Close, Bideford 

Page 16



 

12 

 

TP-09 Union Close, Bideford 

TP-10 Victoria Park, Bideford 

TP-13 Alverdiscott Road, Bideford 

TP-14 Ayres Close, Bideford 

TP-16  Pollyfield, Bideford 

TP-17 Northgate, Hartland 

TP-18 Woodland View, Holsworthy 

TP-19 Clinton Hall, Okehampton (where gone?) 

TP-20 Benson Drive, Northam 

TP-21 Goodwood Park, Northam 

TP-22 Hanson Park, Northam 

TP-25 Aish Park, Shebbear 

TP-26 St Andrews Close, Sutcombe 

TP-27  Burwood, Torrington 

TP-29 Calf Street, Torrington 

TP-30 Calvesford Close, Torrington 

TP-31 Castle Hill Gardens, Torrington 

TP-32 Kingsmead Drive, Torrington 

TP-33 Pathfield, Torrington 

TP-35 Golf Links Road, Westward Ho! 

TP-37 Ridgeway Court, Westward Ho! (where gone?) 

TP-38 Village Green, Westward Ho! 

TP-39 Elm Meadow, Winkleigh 

TP-40 Westcots Drive, Winkleigh 

TP-07 Skate Park 
Missing: TO3 – 017 Bideford Buckland Grange Missing: 7-001 High Bickington Fountain Fields 

 

Page 17



 

13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



 

14 

 

 

Torridge Play area inventory 

Scoring 

Sites have been placed into one of four categories, Poor, Satisfactory, Good or Excellent.  The 
definition for the ratings used in this report can be interpreted as follows:- 

 
 
Definition Percentage of 

equipment 
available 

Rating 

With no equipment failures, in good condition and 
inspiring 

Between 85% to 
100%  

 

With significant equipment available and no 
significant failings 

Between 75% and 
85% 

GOOD 

With some failings and in need of some attention Between 50% and 
75% 

SATISFACTORY 

With significant failings / deterioration and major 
investment required 

0 to 50% POOR 

 
 

Page 19



 

15 

 

Please note:  
An average percentage has been used to calculate availability, but other factors may have 
been taken into account when assessing condition.   
All these factors will have influenced the overall rating and it is subjective 

 
Results 

 
Of 36 total sites the following ratings were achieved 

 
 

GOOD 18 

SATISFACTORY 9 

POOR 8 

 
Ratings by Site (taken from Tivoli survey Sept 2019) 

 
TP-04 Bideford Devonshire Park 

TP-10 Victoria Park 'Bidefort' Bideford 

TP-17 Hartland Northgate   

TP-18 Holsworthy Woodland View  

TP-21 Northam Goodwood Park  

TP-27 Torrington Lower Burwood 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_2  

TP-39 Winkleigh Elm Meadow 

TP-01 Appledore Churchfield   

TP-02 Bideford Bridge Plats Way  

TP-03 Bideford Chestnut Drive 

TP-06 Bideford Old Town Gardens 

TP-08 Bideford Short Close 

TP-10 Victoria Park Infant  Bideford 

TP-10 Victoria Park Junior Bideford 

TP-14 Bideford East Ayres Close  

TP-29 Torrington Calf Street 

TP-05 Bideford Geneva Court  

TP-09 Bideford Union Close 

TP-13 Bideford East Alverdiscott Road  

TP-16 Bideford East Pollyfield  

Page 20



 

16 

 

 

Brief Summary of Findings 

The play condition survey identified a number of consistent findings: - 

Resurfacing Strategy 

Many of the play areas have been equipped with safety matting which is of old type and should be 
considered for replacement to eliminate trip hazards.  The quality of surfacing throughout the 
locations is diverse but mostly towards poor and requiring replacement. 
 
Fabrication Works 

A significant number of items have reached the end of their usable life and historically have been 
repainted.  Although on the surface they appear to be in good condition there are a number of 
fabrication issues which are now coming to light – the majority of these are identified and monitored 
but there are likely to be more.  

Fencing Works 

A number of play areas were designed with wooden perimeter fencing which is reaching the end of 
its life.  Those which were installed with more modern bow top style fencing are considered to be 
better quality.  It would be worth investment in a fencing strategy.  Recent changes in legislation 
suggest that in some areas a fence is no longer a requirement and, in these cases, where there is 
deterioration, ongoing repairs have not taken place and fences have been removed – examples of 
this are Victoria Park Juniors and Ayres Close, Bideford.  

Street Furniture 

There is a huge variation in the types of street furniture used across the district, particular benches 
and litter bins.  It is expected that different schemes will have produced different designs historically 
but there is now an opportunity to introduce a standard and use this as an opportunity to be more 
sustainable? 

End of Life  

A significant number of items have now reached the end of their useful life. Unfortunately, it is likely 
that these will coincide with each other requiring significant investment in all areas.  Consideration 
should be given to the high priority items recommended in the report.   

 

TP-20 Northam Benson Drive  

TP-22 Northam Hanson Park  

TP-25 Shebbear Aish Park   

TP-26 Sutcombe St Andrews Close 

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Infant   

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Juniors   

TP-30 Torrington Calvesford Close 

TP-31 Torrington Castle Hill Gardens  

TP-33 Torrington Pathfield 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_1 

TP-38 Westward Ho! Village Green 

TP-40 Winkleigh Westcots Drive  

T03-017 Bideford Buckleigh Grange 

7-001 High Bickington Fountain Fields 

TP-32 Torrington Kingsmead Drive  

Page 21



 

17 

 

Section 3  

 
What does Torridge aim to do? 
 
The Play Area Strategy outlines a plan to upgrade or replace all playgrounds over the next 10 years.  
Although the council will aim to maintain and upgrade all of its site to the best possible standard 
that finances can allow, it is also a consideration that priority will be to focus on those larger sites 
that accommodate more usage, supporting local families and tourists.  
 

Working group: 
 
It is important that various officers from within Torridge District Council work collaboratively in order 
to provide the best play areas for the Torridge community as financially possible. 
This group will include members from various teams including Economic Development, Planning, 
Property and Finance. This group will also work closely with its external partners such as various 
trusts/charities and housing providers. 
 
The Council aims to provide play areas that: 
• offer and encourage play experiences that promote independence for people of all abilities 
• are sympathetic to the surrounding area and neighbourhood  
• maintain a connection to nature where possible 
• promote intergenerational use 
• provide a connection to the community. The community will be engaged prior to all playground 
upgrades, in order to ensure their needs are met.  
 
The Council also aims to: 
 

 Continue to recognise the importance of play and utilising our open spaces 

 Provide engagement with communities when required 

 Work with partners and other organisations to provide support against barriers of play 

 Use Fields in Trust guidance in respect of future planning applications and developments 

 Encourage community participation in fundraising and provide support where needed 

 Work with estates, finance and planning as part our capital programme 

 Consider the effects of Covid-19 pandemic on individuals health and well being 
 
 
 
We will base our approach on: 

Design for Play: a guide to creating successful play spaces published in August by Play England, the 

Department for Children, Schools and Families and DCMS. It provides ideas and practical resources 

for building new play spaces in a fresher and more inspiring manner. The guide, supported by CABE 

Space, advocates a fresh design-led approach to commissioning, based on 10 principles and 

encapsulated in one golden rule: a successful play space is a place in its own right, specially designed 

for its location, in such a way as to provide as much play value as possible. The rules ask practitioners 

to imagine a play space that is:  

Page 22



 

18 

 

1 Designed to enhance its setting — successful play spaces are designed to fit their surroundings 

and enhance the local environment, complementing attractive spaces and enhancing poorer 

environments.  

2 Located in the best possible place — successful play spaces are located carefully ‘to be where 

children would play naturally’. While children often enjoy feeling as if they are away from adult view, 

there is a fine balance between a space that is pleasantly secluded and one that is remote and 

hidden away.  

3 Close to nature — grassy mounds, planting, logs and boulders can all help to make a more 

attractive and playable setting for equipment, and planting can also help attract birds and other 

wildlife to bring the play space to life.  

4 Designed so that children can play in different ways — successful play spaces can be used in 

different ways by children and young people of different ages and interests; they can also be 

important social spaces for parents and carers, as well as for children.  

5 Geared towards encouraging disabled and able-bodied children to play together — children with 

different abilities can play together in well-designed play spaces, and parents and carers who are 

themselves disabled should be able to gain access to play spaces if they are to accompany their 

children.  

6 Loved by the community — a successful community engagement process will help create a site 

that the community likes, and which meets its needs.  

7 Where children of all ages play together — good play spaces avoid segregating children based on 

age or ability and are laid out so that equipment and features can be used by a wide range of 

children.  

8 Designed to enable children to stretch and challenge themselves in every way — Children and 

young people need opportunities to experience challenge and excitement in their play.  

9 Maintained for play value and environmental sustainability — good play spaces are designed and 

constructed using sustainable materials and maintained to encourage different play experiences.  

10 - Flexible and able to evolve as the children grow — Building some ‘slack space’ into the layout 

— areas with no predefined function — can help introduce the potential for change and evolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

19 

 

Key Issues and priorities for improvement 

Current play area ratings as of October 2020 
 

 

Code Town Play Area & Colour rating 
Current colour rating 

by score 
Date Rating received 

TP-04 Bideford Devonshire Park  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-10 Victoria Park 'Bidefort' Bideford  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-17 Hartland Northgate  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-18 Holsworthy Woodland View  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-21 Northam Goodwood Park  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-27 Torrington Lower Burwood  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_2  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-39 Winkleigh Elm Meadow  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-01 Appledore Churchfield Excellent? October 2020 

TP-02 Bideford Bridge Plats Way  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-03 Bideford Chestnut Drive  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-06 Bideford Old Town Gardens  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-08 Bideford Short Close  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-10 Bideford Victoria Park Infant  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-10 Bideford Victoria Park Junior  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-14 Bideford East Ayres Close  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-29 Torrington Calf Street Excellent? October 2020 

TP-05 Bideford Geneva Court  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-09 Bideford Union Close  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-13 Bideford East Alverdiscott Road  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-16 Bideford East Pollyfield  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-20 Northam Benson Drive  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-22 Northam Hanson Park  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-25 Shebbear Aish Park  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-26 Sutcombe St Andrews Close  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Infant Excellent? October 2020 

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Juniors Excellent? October 2020 

TP-30 Torrington Calvesford Close  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-31 Torrington Castle Hill Gardens  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-33 Torrington Pathfield  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_1  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-38 Westward Ho! Village Green  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-40 Winkleigh Westcots Drive  Jul – Sept 2019 

T03-017 Bideford Buckleigh Grange  Jul – Sept 2019 

7-001 High Bickington Fountain Fields  Jul – Sept 2019 

TP-32 Torrington Kingsmead Drive Excellent? Sept 2020 

 Bideford Skate Park  October 2020 

Page 24



 

20 

 

Proposed Play Area Development commitment from TDC 
 
 

Current Score Priority Time scale to make ‘good’ standard Time scale to make excellent 

Poor Urgent By January 2023 By January 2031 

Satisfactory High By January 2023 By January 2031 

Good Low N/A By January 2031 

Excellent None N/A N/A  

 
The commitment from Torridge District Council is to support plans to have all 36 play areas in an excellent 
condition by October 2031. Please note this is a commitment to support where possible and not to directly fund 
each play area with Capital Funding. There will be a certain expectation of community ownership of which 
Torridge District Council will support as per the asset transfer process below. 
We know from certain examples, such as play areas in Northam, that when certain assets are handed back to 
other organisations, such as Town Councils, that future maintenance and development is often of a higher 
standard than Torridge District Council can realistically provide. In these situations, the asset transfer process will 
be considered. However, this decision will not be taken lightly, and this can only happen if the council is 
confident that all points of the asset transfer policy are deemed certain to take place.  
Torridge District Council may identify play areas that may benefit further from being owned by a 
different organisation such as a Parish or Town Council 
 
The Council is fully supportive of Community Transfers and has set up a process to consider all 
approaches from the Community in a clear and transparent manner. 
 

The Asset Transfer Process 
 
1. Identification of asset 
 
2 Submission of initial Proposal. (Stage One) This must be to an acceptable standard 

on Form CT2. 
 
3 Valuation. To be made available to applicant. 
 
4 Initial Assessment and Evaluation of Benefits. By Member Asset Management Group 

and feedback to applicant. 
 
5 Submission of Detailed submission/Business Plan. (Stage Two) This must be to an 

acceptable standard as outlined by Form CT3. For simpler schemes Stage One and 
Two could be combined to speed the process. 

 
6 Consideration by Member Asset Management Group. Any feedback to be sent to 

applicant. 
 
7 Consideration by Policy Performance and Resources Committee. This Committee will 

act as the Community Asset Transfer Panel with the final decision-making powers. 
 
8 Finalised by Legal Team. 
 

Page 25



 

21 

 

9 Member Asset Management Group will monitor the process. 
 
10 Appeals against decisions can be considered by the Council’s Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

 Asset transfer should take place where it can realise social or community benefits, 
without risking wider public interest concerns 
 

 The benefits of community ownership of assets can outweigh the risks involved, in 
appropriate circumstances 
 

 Risks can be minimised and managed by drawing on the experience of others 
 
 
 

Maintenance Provision 
 

In addition to the capital investment and provision of the facility, Torridge District Council have a 

responsibility for maintenance and safety of the equipment. The ageing stock has, in some cases 

reached the end of its usable life, replacement parts may be obsolete, and the cost of replacement is 

too high or cannot be justified. 

Over the last six years, Torridge District Council has invested more than £410k in maintenance 

costs for play areas. 

 
 

Maintenance plan of Torridge owned sites (carried out by Tivoli) 

 Daily inspections 

 Weekly inspections 

 Monthly inspections 

 

Future funding for play areas 
 
There is no dedicated funding for children’s play areas from government. It is up to each Local 
Authority to allocate limited resource into providing and maintaining play facilities. 
Economic resources for funding new projects in local government is limited and therefore authorities 
like Torridge District Council have to prioritise funding they have available. A significant amount of 
money is invested in health & safety and maintenance with little funds available for new provision. 
 
Grants are non‐repayable funds that enable voluntary and community organisations to provide 
services or activities. Match funding and possible Crowdfunding schemes providing amplification of 
Torridge District Council councillor grant spending but must be adopted in a more strategic way to 
not only enable Councillor grants to go further but also to ensure lasting impact and value for money 
of being involved in any platform. 
 

 
Grant Funding – Supporting our communities 

Page 26



 

22 

 

 
There are over 4,000 grant funders in the UK, and the process is highly competitive. Links to the 
extensive list of funders are available at: https://mycommunity.org.uk/  
 
The following projects in the Torridge District have provisioned with the help of grant funding: 

 Kingsmead Drive, Torrington 

 Burwood Play Area, Torrington 

 Calf street Play Area, Torrington 
 

Crowdfunding 
 
Crowdfunding is a method of raising capital through the collective effort of friends, family, 
customers, and individual investors. This approach taps into the collective efforts of a large pool of 
individuals—primarily online via social media and crowdfunding platforms—and leverages their 
networks for greater reach and exposure. 
 
 

Play Champion/s 

 
Torridge District Council will aim to engage a Play Champion within its ranks. This will be a non-paid, 
non-executive role given to a member of staff that willingly volunteers themselves to the role. This 
maybe more than one individual should the opportunity arise. It would be great to have one Play 
Champion within each main area of Bideford, Holsworthy and Torrington. 
Examples of what the role of a play champion may include: 

 sharing best practice and stories of success 
 signposting colleagues to relevant resources and services 
 role modelling and promoting a healthy play culture within our community 
 promoting working with play areas in mind 
 taking an active part in promoting messages, activities and events 

 
Anyone interested in coming a Play Champion can make their interest known to the Community 
Engagement Officer who will advise as appropriate. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Covid-19 addendum, 2020 

Page 27

https://mycommunity.org.uk/


 

23 

 

The COVID pandemic has made us all aware of the importance of having open spaces in which to 

isolate, exercise and play. 

Exercise has been a key factor in lockdown regulations and has proved invaluable to everyone’s      

health and wellbeing. 

In May 2020, the Associate for Play Industries (API) said “it fully appreciates the priority is preventing 
COVID‐19 spreading further throughout the population and supports the current closures of 
playgrounds and outdoor gyms in this first stage of relaxing the lockdown measures. The welfare of 
children is paramount in this crisis and whilst the priority is, of course, their safety, it is alarming that 
children’s right to play freely outdoors has not received any government attention. Playgrounds are a 
keyway in which children will be able to heal from the effects of lockdown.” 

Unfortunately, Councils across the UK have had to restrict access to playgrounds on government 
advice to prevent further risk. This has proved unpopular but necessary. 
Whilst cooperative play amongst young children is crucial in their development stages, we need to 

be mindful that provision for other play may also need to be accommodated, particularly in a 

pandemic situation. This strategy needs to be fully developed but could be as simple as providing 

two single swing sets, where space allows, instead of sharing a traditional pair of swings. The world 

as we know it is changing. Could this be the end of the traditional playground that we’ve all grown 

up with? 

We don’t yet know how this will affect our strategy, but we acknowledge this is an important 

development and Torridge District Council will consider the effects of the current situation and 

will use government guidance and develop the new way forward. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices  

Page 28



 

24 

 

 
1.1 Green Infrastructure Strategy – part 1 - 

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13536&p=0 
1.2 Green Infrastructure Strategy – part 2 - 

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13537&p=0  
1.3 Green Infrastructure Strategy – part 3 - 

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13538&p=0  
 
2.0  Northern Devon Play Pitch strategy             
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=18262&p=0  
 
3.0 Torridge District Council Play Area Condition Survey 2019 (link to be added when adopted within 

this strategy)  

4.0 Friends of the Earth 
        https://policy.friendsoftheearth.uk/insight/englands-green-space-gap 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 29

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13536&p=0
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13537&p=0
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13538&p=0
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=18262&p=0
https://policy.friendsoftheearth.uk/insight/englands-green-space-gap


 
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Torridge District Council  

Play Area Condition Survey 

2019 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/socialmedia


 
 

2 
 

Introduction 

Torridge District Council are responsible for play areas in 5 distinct geographical 
locations within the district.  
 
The purpose of this document is to consider the current status of all Torridge District 
Council play areas and aims to identify the following detail:- 
 
• Maps showing the location of each play area within Torridge 
• Inventory data for each location 
• Survey condition of current equipment 
• Provide a summary of current issues and planned works 
• Identify key priorities for repair 
• Document percentage of available play areas and voids 
• Identify priorities for capital funds investment 

 
 
 
  

Page 31



 
 

3 
 

Contents         Page no. 

Background         4 

Scoring          5  

Ratings by Site        6-7 

Brief summary of findings     8 

Key priorities for replacement    9 

Example – play area standard    11-12 

Park data by site (detail)     13-84 

Appendices         85-93 

References         94 

 

  

Page 32



 
 

4 
 

Background 

Torridge District council are responsible for the maintenance of 36 key sites within 
the district, although not all of them are owned by Torridge.  
 
Historically, some play areas have been handed over to Parish or other district 
Councils or as a result of 106 requirements have been developed or handed over to 
developers/Housing Associations under financial arrangements. 
  
A comprehensive list of the areas covered by this report is contained in Appendix A. 
Maps of the location of the various sites is covered in Appendix B-G. 
 
A play area inventory is shown as Appendix H. 
 
Surveying sites took place from July to September 2019 and reflects the status of the 
sites at that time.  Any subsequent damage, repairs or replacements which arise after 
that date may not be reflected in this report.   
 
The new Skate Park at Bideford has not been included in the survey. 
 
All sites have been surveyed and the equipment available for use has been 
documented.  In some cases all equipment is available for use, in others a significant 
amount of equipment is isolated or has been removed or not replaced.  On some 
sites all equipment is available for use but remaining equipment may be in a poor 
condition.  An average percentage has been used to calculate availability but other 
factors may have been taken into account when assessing condition.   
All these factors will have influenced the overall rating. 
  

Page 33



 
 

5 
 

Scoring 

Sites have been placed into one of four categories, Poor, Satisfactory, Good or 
Excellent.  The definition for the ratings used in this report can be interpreted as 
follows:- 
 

Definition Percentage of 
equipment 
available 

Rating 

With no equipment fails in good condition and 
inspiring 

Between 85% to 
100%  

 

With significant equipment available and no 
significant failings 

Between 75% and 
85% 

GOOD 

With some failings and in need of some attention Between 50% and 
75% 

SATISFACTORY 

With significant failings / deterioration and major 
investment required 

0 to 50% POOR 

 
Please note:  
An average percentage has been used to calculate availability but other factors may have been 
taken into account when assessing condition.   
All these factors will have influenced the overall rating and it is subjective 

 
Results 
 
Of 36 total sites the following ratings were achieved 

 
 

GOOD 18 

SATISFACTORY 9 

POOR 8 

   
 
  

Page 34



 
 

6 
 

Ratings by Site 

 

 
TP-04 Bideford Devonshire Park 

TP-10 Victoria Park 'Bidefort' Bideford 

TP-17 Hartland Northgate   

TP-18 Holsworthy Woodland View  

TP-21 Northam Goodwood Park  

TP-27 Torrington Lower Burwood 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_2  

TP-39 Winkleigh Elm Meadow 

TP-01 Appledore Churchfield   

TP-02 Bideford Bridge Plats Way  

TP-03 Bideford Chestnut Drive 

 TP-06 Bideford Old Town Gardens 

TP-08 Bideford Short Close 

TP-10 Victoria Park Infant  Bideford 

TP-10 Victoria Park Junior Bideford 

TP-14 Bideford East Ayres Close  

TP-29 Torrington Calf Street 

  

Page 35



 
 

7 
 

TP-05 Bideford Geneva Court  

TP-09 Bideford Union Close 

TP-13 Bideford East Alverdiscott Road  

TP-16 Bideford East Pollyfield  

TP-20 Northam Benson Drive  

TP-22 Northam Hanson Park  

TP-25 Shebbear Aish Park   

TP-26 Sutcombe St Andrews Close 

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Infant   

TP-27 Torrington Burwood Juniors   

TP-30 Torrington Calvesford Close 

TP-31 Torrington Castle Hill Gardens  

TP-33 Torrington Pathfield 

TP-35 Westward Ho! Golf Links Road_1 

TP-38 Westward Ho! Village Green 

TP-40 Winkleigh Westcots Drive  

T03-017 Bideford Buckleigh Grange 

7-001 High Bickington Fountain Fields 

TP-32 Torrington Kingsmead Drive  

 

  

Page 36



 
 

8 
 

Brief Summary of Findings 

The condition survey identified a number of consistent findings:- 

Resurfacing Strategy 

Many of the play areas have been equipped with safety matting which is of old type 
and should be considered for replacement to eliminate trip hazards.  The quality of 
surfacing throughout the locations is diverse but mostly towards poor and requiring 
replacement. 
 
Fabrication Works 

A significant number of items have reached the end of their usable life and 
historically have been repainted.  Although on the surface they appear to be in good 
condition there are a number of fabrication issues which are now coming to light – 
the majority of these are identified and monitored but there are likely to be more.  

Fencing Works 

A number of play areas were designed with wooden perimeter fencing which is 
reaching the end of its life.  Those which were installed with more modern bowtop 
style fencing are considered to be better quality.  It would be worth investment in a 
fencing strategy.  Recent changes in legislation suggest that in some areas a fence is 
no longer a requirement and in these cases where there is deterioriation, ongoing 
repairs have not taken place and fences have been removed – examples of this are 
Victoria Park Juniors and Ayres Close, Bideford.  

Street Furniture 

There is a huge variation in the types of street furniture used across the district, 
particular benches and litter bins.  It is expected that different schemes will have 
produced different designs historically but there is now an opportunity to introduce a 
standard and use this as an opportunity to be more sustainable? 

End of Life  

A significant number of items have now reached the end of their useful life. 
Unfortunately, it is likely that these will coincide with each other requiring significant 
investment in all areas.  Consideration should be given to the high priority items 
recommended in this report.   

Page 37



 
 

9 
 

 

Key Priorities for Replacement / Refurbishment 

This report suggests that key areas identified for capital investment should include:- 

Individual sites identified:- 

• Victoria Park – Infants & Bidefort – Already known as the splinter this piece of 
equipment should be considered for significant investment 
 

• Devonshire Park, Bideford – With a number of items removed, not replaced or in a 
poor state of repair this area could be considered for investment to make a 
positive impact 
 

• Churchfields, Appledore – the current local interest in the play ship is significant 
and is already being addressed – this is a key site for the area 

 

• Burwood, Torrington – there is a keen interest in this site with local interest 
groups actively fundraising.  The three parks are currently independent from each 
other but Lower Burwood Park has been isolated for a long time.  It could be 
updated and consideration given to the connectivity with Upper Burwood 

Strategic Consideration 

• A full resurfacing strategy for all sites should be considered – we are currently 
replacing with patch repairs which is not cost effective.  To consider this strategy 
throughout the district would bring all sites up to date more cost effectively. 

• Likewise, fencing repairs and a strategy for new fencing such as bowtop should be 
considered, at least for the high risk immediate locations such as Burwood 

• Consideration should be given to the criteria for replacing items instead of leaving 
large voids 

The management and updating of the routine maintenance schedule is key to enable 
Torridge to understand its current position and work with its service partner to 
achieve maximum possible occupancy.  There are currently over 500 backlog items 
which we are aware of and possibly more that are not yet identified.   
 

Page 38



 
 

10 
 

EXAMPLE - PLAY AREA STANDARD 

TP-37 Ridgeway Court, Westward Ho! 

This play area at Ridgeway Court was previously the responsibility of Torridge District 

Council and is an excellent example of a good quality play area.   

It no longer falls within TDC remit.  

1 x Multi-play unit 
1 x basket swing 
2 x swings (1 x flat and 1 x cradle) 
1 x roundabout 
1 x caterpillar 1-10 counting feature 
2 x Educational board 
There is also a seat and a penguin litter bin. 
 
The area is well fenced with bow top which is in a good state of repair.   
The area is surfaced with wetpour which is in a good state of repair.   
This is a fairly new play area, inspirational and possibly one of the best examples of a 
play area standard within the district.  
 

Overall condition of the Park    :  

 
Note : 
Ridgeway Court is an excellent example of a Play Area.  
It was handed over by Torridge in 2016/17 
We do not have any play areas which match this standard. 

 

  

Page 39



 
 

11 
 

TP-37 Ridgeway Court, Westward Ho! 

  Overview of site (left)  
Multiplay unit (below) 

Examples of swings 
(left and below) 

Roundabout (below) 

Education boards and caterpillar 
counting feature below 

Page 40



 
 

12 
 

TP-25 Aish Park, Shebbear 

The play area consists of 4 pieces of equipment:- 
 
1 x bumble bee spring rider 
1 x roundabout 
1 x flat swing 
1 x cradle swing 
 
In addition there is a bench and a waste bin.   
The playground is in overall good order but is uninspiring and dated.  The bench seat 
and bin are of the old style and should be considered for replacement.  
 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Aish Close 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Bench seat wood split Low none  

Evidence of corrosion in roundabout base Low Actively monitoring  

The neighbouring fencing between the playarea is 
leaning in  

Low Investigated and to be 
monitored 

Monitoring 

Surface matting edge sticking up under swings Medium Identified for 
replacement works 

Not yet 
addressed 

Replace flat swing threaded bars within the two 
nylon pivots as they are corroding 

Low These will be 
completed as part of 
routine works 

With Tivoli 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 

 
Recommendation:  
As the surfaces are worn in several places it may be worth considering resurfacing 
works for this uninspiring space and adding a splash of colour. 

 

Page 41



 
 

13 
 

  

TP-25 Aish Park, Shebbear 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Site overview 

Swing pair 

Bumble bee 

springer 

Standard roundabout 

Old style bench and bin 

Current 

signage 

Page 42



 
 

14 
 

TP-14 Ayres Close, Bideford 

The play area consists of three pieces of equipment:- 
1 x flat swing unit 
1 x multi-play unit with slide 
1 x goalpost (it’s unclear whether this has been installed by locals) 
 
A number of areas of concrete which were used for bench surfacing and benches 
have been relocated leaving concrete areas which have not been reinstated.  There 
are three bench seats located around the park and a waste bin.  The benches are a 
different type to the Torridge standard and are reaching the end of their useful life. 
In line with a change in strategy for fencing in play areas, the wooden palisade 
fencing has recently been removed due to end of life as it is not a play safety 
requirement and was proving costly to reinstate on a regular basis.  
There are two areas of rubber matting empty where equipment has been removed 
and not reinstated.    
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Ayres Close 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Splintered bench issues – old style benches not 
usual standard 

Low Need refurbishment 
or replacement 

Not yet 
addressed 

Large gaps in the safety matting squares which 
could cause a trip hazard 

Low A programme of 
resurfacing is required 

Identified for 
works 

Soil eroded around swings exposing concrete 
edging – could cause trip hazard  

Low Consider 
reinstatement works 

Not yet 
addressed 

Cracks on swing seats around eye bolts Low Requires quote to 
replace swings 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 3 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  2 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
Recommendation:  
Reinstate areas where equipment has been removed and consider replacing items. 
Consider surface treatments to upgrade old style safety matting 

Page 43



 
 

15 
 

TP-14 Ayres Close, Bideford 

 
   
   

     
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Site view from road 

 

Single swing Goalpost 

Bench condition 

Example where equipment 

has been removed 

Multi-play unit 

with slide 

Page 44



 
 

16 
 

TP-13 Alverdiscott Road, Bideford 
 
The play area consists of 6 pieces of equipment:- 
 
1 x duck spring rider 
1 x see saw springer 
2 x cradle swings 
1 x multi-play unit 
1 x set of stepping logs (x 6) 
 
There are a couple of bench seats and two bin bases where bins are missing.  The 

park is in overall good condition and will require some fabrication works and localised 

repairs to address the identified issues. 

 Summary of Current Issues – Alverdiscott Road 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Metal perimeter fence posts bent Low Monitor and 

undertake local repair 
Not yet 
addressed 

Rubbish bin missing Low Order replacement Not yet 
addressed 

Gap between the bottom of the slide and panel 
needs filling in to prevent a finger entrapment  

Low Need to instruct 
fabrication works 

Not yet 
addressed 

The pedestrian barrier has been hit by a vehicle 
preventing wheelchair access 

Medium repair undertaken but 
requires further works 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 6 units 
Equipment isolated     :  0 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 

 
Recommendation:  
Remedial works to slide panel and pedestrian barrier.  Replace bin. 
  

Page 45



 
 

17 
 

TP-13 Alverdiscott Road, Bideford 
 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Multi play unit with slide 

Modern style benches 

Stepping Stone logs 

Pair of Springers 

Cradle Swings 

Site overview 

Page 46



 
 

18 
 

TP-20 Benson Drive, Northam  

The play area consists of 4 pieces of equipment:- 
 
1 x dog spring rider 
1 x multi-play unit 
2 x cradle swings 
 
There is also a modern style bench seat. 
The surface areas around the play area have been identified by the play area 
inspector as being in a poor state with exposed edging around the play equipment.  
This is subjective and of low priority and as the photos suggest, whilst some of the 
edges and landscaping could be backfilled, the play area is not in need of resurfacing 
works.  Minor works are required to the multi-unit which should be a routine repair. 
Overall, aesthetically equipment looks faded and could do with repainting but 
structurally is in good condition with no major faults. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Benson Drive 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Exposing concrete edging could cause a trip 
hazard 

Medium Identified for 
resurfacing works 

Not yet 
addressed 

Safety surface split around perimeter of play 
area 

Low As above Not yet 
addressed 

wooden footboard rotting on multi unit Low Remedial works 
required to footplate 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  0 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation:  
Localised landscaping works to level concrete edges with grass surround.   
Localised repair works to multi-unit.  
Longer term repaint equipment.  

Page 47



 
 

19 
 

TP-20 Benson Drive, Northam  

  

Park Overview 

Dog springer 

Cradle Swings 

Multi-play unit with slide 

Modern steel bench 

Page 48



 
 

20 
 

TP-02 Bridge Plats Way 

The play area consists of 1 piece of equipment:- 
 
1 x multi-play unit 
 
There is also a bench seat and a paved section where a bench or piece of equipment 
has been removed and not reinstated. 
 
Some areas of the surfacing around the multi-play unit have been identified as worn, 

presenting trip hazards.  This is unsurprising as it is old style safety matting and could 

benefit from updating with wetpour as part of a surfacing strategy. 

 

 Summary of Current Issues – Bridge Plats Way 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The corner grass matting is damaged and requires 
replacing to prevent any further trip hazard 

Low Temporary infill with 
soil. Requires solution 

Not yet 
addressed 

Corrosion on multi play units various areas.   Low Requires inspection 
and fabrication works 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 1 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 unit  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATIFACTORY 

 

Recommendation:  
Consider removal of mat surfacing and applying wetpour solution 
  

Page 49



 
 

21 
 

TP-02 Bridge Plats Way 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Multi-play slide unit 

Extent of safety mat damage 

Item removed not reinstated 

Southampton bench seat 

Page 50



 
 

22 
 

T03-017 Buckleigh Grange  

The play area consists of 2 pieces of equipment:- 
 
1 x educational rocket 
2 x step stones 
 
There is an old style wooden bench seat in this location. 
This area is a public open space and not essentially a ‘play area’. 
Bench could do with refurbishment and landscaping, hedging works need 
implementing.  
 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Buckleigh Grange 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The fencing as previously reported is leaning in towards 
the hedgerow, within the play area.   
Two posts need replacing 

Low Remedial works 
required 

Not yet 
addressed 

Interior hedge needs pruning Low Should be addressed 
by Tivoli 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 3 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 

 

Recommendation:  
Consider refurbishing bench. Address timing of landscaping strategy. 

Page 51



 
 

23 
 

T03-017 Buckleigh Grange  

 

 

  

old style wooden bench seat 

Pair of stepping stones 

Educational rocket toy 

Overview of public open space 

Page 52



 
 

24 
 

TP-27 Burwood Infants, Torrington 

The play area consists of 4 pieces of equipment.   
There is also a bench seat. 
 
1 x multiplay unit 
2 x cradle swings 
1 x elephant springer 
 
The signage is faded and in poor condition and needs replacement.  
It already has safety surfacing but would benefit from replacement of the old style 
wooden fencing which is deterioriating throughout.  There are some superficial and 
ongoing maintenance issues which are being monitored. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Burwood Infants 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Safety surfaces lifting around the perimeter of the 
multi-unit 

Medium Consider programme of 
resurfacing works 

Not yet 
started 

The tower platform has corroded leaving a sharp hole 
within the platform floor.  It needs repair seek 
fabrication advice 

Medium Check unit for 
fabrication works 

Not yet 
started 

The slide middle post has now been replaced leaving 
two posts  corroded.  Corrosion reported previously 

Medium Investigate further Not yet 
started 

Fire damage in crawl tunnel Medium Investigate further Not yet 
started 

Existing fence issues Medium Consider strategy for 
replacement 

Not yet 
started 

The springer rocker base cover is broken 
 A replacement cover is needed 

Low Requires replacement Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100 % 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation : 
Update signage and address remedial issues 
 

Page 53



 
 

25 
 

TP-27 Burwood Infants, Torrington 

 

 

  

Overview of Park area 

Cradle swings 

Multi-play unit for 2-5 years 

Elephant 

springer 

Metal 

bench 

Historic 

signage 

Page 54



 
 

26 
 

TP-27 Burwood Juniors, Torrington 
 
The play area consists of 6 pieces of equipment:- 
2 x flat swings 
1 x balance beam 
1 x set of stepping stones 
1 x roundabout    
1 x basket swing 
1 x void spaces (from equipment removed) 
 
The area contains historic safety surfacing which has been maintained but needs 
upgrading.  This area suffers with seasonal moss coverage under the tree canopies 
and regularly has to be disinfected and treated for algae covering.   Two void areas 
where seats were located but not replaced.  No seating.  The roundabout has been 
subject to significant repair, it should be considered to have reached the end of its 
useful life and should be replaced.  
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Burwood Juniors 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
There is a hole in the safety surfaces by the swings – 
surface condition poor next to basket swing 
 

Low Monitor and consider 
for resurfacing works 

Not yet 
addressed 

Exterior wood fence rot sections missing 
 

Low Consider investment 
to fencing in this 
location 

Not yet 
addressed 

The ply boards underneath the roundabout are 
breaking up and need securing ASAP reported on the 
operational inspection carried out on the 2/08/19 
 

Medium Roundabout in poor 
state of repair and has 
been repainted – 
consider replacement 

Not yet 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 6 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 unknown equipment 
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation: consider replacing the roundabout, replacement fencing and 
potential surfacing works.  Addition of a seating area 

Page 55



 
 

27 
 

TP-27 Burwood Juniors, Torrington 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Double 

flat 

swings 

Roundabout 

Basket Swing 

Stepping Stones 

Balance Beam 

Areas where equipment or benches removed 

 

Page 56



 
 

28 
 

TP-27 Lower Burwood, Torrington 
 
The area known as Lower Burwood, Torrington is a former play area at the bottom 
section of the total play area location. 
 
Lower Burwood had previous equipment installed and the area was prone to 
flooding.  An underground spring is located at the rear of the landscaped bowl and in 
recent years Torridge District Council have successfully installed a French drain 
arrangement to combat the flooding issue.   
 
This area has been monitored for continued flooding but has been kept isolated for 
from the main play area for safety reasons. 
 
Torridge have committed to replace equipment in this area once the flooding issues 
have been resolved.  New equipment is planned for this area and is likely to be partly 
funded by local community interest group fundraising the Burwood Helping Hands 
Community Group.  This is likely to be a climbing frame which will require planning 
consent.  Local fundraisers have been active in discussing requirements with Torridge 
Council and at the time of writing this report fundraisers are considering 
specifications and planning requirements. 
 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : None 
Equipment isolated     :  VOID 
% of equipment available for use  :  0% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 climbing feature & more 
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
 
Recommendation :  
Consider requirements of the Burwood Helping Hands Group 
A climbing frame feature will be adjacent to the neighbouring properties and could 
require public consultation.  Any design should incorporate Burwood Infants and 
maximise safe connection between both park areas 
 

  

Page 57



 
 

29 
 

TP-27 Lower Burwood, Torrington 

 

  

Vacant space at Lower 

Burwood monitoring 

flooding issue 

View to right up 

towards Burwood 

Junior play area 

Page 58



 
 

30 
 

TP-30 Calvesford Close, Torrington 

This play area aimed at the age group 2-7 years old age group is located in the middle 
of a housing estate in Torrington and is well used locally.  It consists of the following 
equipment:- 
 
1 x flat swing 
1 x multiplay unit with slide 
1 x step up / stepping stone 
 
1 X bench seat 
 
There is also an old style bench in this area.  The surfacing has been upgraded to 
safety surfacing but is in a poor state of repair with large gaps reported.  There is a 
very old sign which could do with updating.  The step up is a bit pointless unless you 
were following a unique keep fit regime, it seems to be a legacy where the others 
have long since gone.  Could be perceived as a trip hazard although not been 
reported as such so no action required. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Calvesford Drive 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Fence section missing Medium Monitor and instruct 

contractor to repair 
Not yet done 

Gate not operating within specification closing too fast Medium Inspect and instruct 
contractor 

Not yet done 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 3units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  None  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation :  
Address safety matting issues by considering a resurfacing strategy. 
Deal with remedial items such as gate issues as part of daily strategy

Page 59



 
 

31 
 

TP-30 Calvesford Close, Torrington 
 

  

Solo Stepping stone  

Height of stepping stone  

Old Calvesford Close signage  

in need of updating 

Overview of play area 

Page 60



 
 

32 
 

TP-31 Castle Hill Gardens 

The play area at Castle Hill Gardens, Torrington is accessed via the housing area.   
 
The play area consists of four current pieces of equipment:- 
1 x pair of Wicksteed flat swing units 
1 x slide 
1 x see-saw 
 
There are also two bench seat units and a bin.  Signage is historic and should be 
reviewed.  The equipment is in good order but is showing signs of corrosion to the 
metalwork which is being monitored.  This will require attention in due course.   
There are some issues with the safety matting which is the old type and is showing 
signs of deterioriation which could cause trip hazards.   
Ideally, this area should be considered for resurfacing.  There is an area of 
landscaping adjacent to the houses which does not form part of the landscaping 
contract, it is full of nettles, brambles and scrub which should ideally be cleared as a 
one off.  

 Summary of Current Issues – Castle Hill Gardens 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Large gaps in between safety matting squares 
which could cause a trip hazard 

Low Identified for 
resurfacing works 

Not yet 
addressed 

Light corrosion on the see saw base which is being 
monitored 

Low Monitored Monitored 

Light corrosion on slide support Low Monitored Monitored 

Neighbouring 3rd party wall has developed a crack 
which needs investigating or isolating 

High Further site visit 
required at time of 
survey 

Needs to be 
addressed 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  None    
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation:  
Consider resurfacing and upgrading signage. Neighbouring boundary wall issue 
needs to be addressed 

Page 61



 
 

33 
 

TP-31 Castle Hill Gardens 

 

 

 

Park overview 

 

Slide 

 

Wicksteed flat swings 

 

See saw 

 

Old signage 

 

Scrub area for removal 

 

Pair of bench seats 

 

Page 62



 
 

34 
 

TP-03 Chestnut Drive 

The play area consists of pieces of equipment as follows :- 

2 x flat swings 
1 x multi-play unit 
1 x vertical pole spinner 
1 x basket swing (void frame) 
1 x void space where equipment removed and not replaced 
3 x bench seats 
1 x bin 
 
The significant presence of moles on site was noted at the time of inspection. 
There are three types of seating styles on this site. 
A huge area of void where equipment has been removed is obvious. 
Old style safety matting is still in use here which is causing significant issues. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Chestnut Drive 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The bench slats are loose and remain tied with rope as 
previously reported 

Medium bench repairs being 
undertaken (Kevin 
Crawford) 

In progress 

Gaps in between safety matting squares could cause a 
trip hazard  

Low Review use of old 
style safety matting 

Not yet 
started 

Climbing multi unit has lots of movement when you 
shake it 

Low This is a design 
feature 

Actively 
monitoring 

The wire fencing needs tieing back along the 
neighbouring fence line 

Low Repairs need to be 
undertaken 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 6 units 
Equipment isolated or void   :  2 units 
% of equipment available for use  :  66% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
Recommendation:  
Consider programme of safety resurfacing 
Bench repairs already being undertaken 
Repair wire fencing as soon as possible  

Page 63



 
 

35 
 

TP-03 Chestnut Drive 

 

  

Site Overview 

Void where basket swing removed 

Vertical pole spinner 

Multi play unit 

Trio of 

different 

benches 

Pair of flat swings 

Waste bin style 

Page 64



 
 

36 
 

TP-01 Churchfields, Appledore 

The area is located significantly close to the sea wall and suffers from the effects of 

its coastal location.  The play ship was isolated due to safety issues – these are being 

dealt with separately.  The park consists of 9 pieces of play equipment.  

2 x flat swings 
1 x basket swing 
1 x multi-play unit 
2 x cradle swings 
1 x slide 
2 x spring riders (installed September 2019) 
 
6 bench seats 
1 x picnic table 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Churchfields, Appledore 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
concrete kerb edging is damaged in several places 
between the car park and the play area 

Low Actively monitoring In progress 

Bolt is missing from the slide platform Low Actively monitoring In progress 

Paint corroding on swing frame Low Actively monitoring In progress 

The end wall inside of the gateway is cracked through 
and mortar is loose.  Carry out repair works to the wall 
as reported asap 

Low Investigate further Not yet 
started 

The 1 metre approx, stone wall is cracked through both 
sides beside the gate/Aqua club.  Building repair works   

Low Investigate further Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  

Number of pieces of equipment   : 9 units 
Equipment isolated     :  1 unit 
% of equipment available for use  :  90% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  3 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
Recommendation :  
Remove existing playship structure as soon as possible 
Continue with procurement of playship then reassess 

Page 65



 
 

37 
 

TP-01 Churchfields, Appledore 
 
 

  

Basket & flat swings 

Dolphin and whale springers 

(installed September 2019) 

Cradle swings 

Slide (replaced  in 2018) 
Typical bench and 

picnic seating 

Page 66



 
 

38 
 

TP-04 Devonshire Park 

One of the largest parks in the District, Devonshire Park contains 18 pieces of play 

equipment consisting of:- 

2 x goal posts 

1 x climbing frame 

1 x woodland adventure trail 
1 x spring rider (tractor theme) 
1 x multi play unit 
2 x roundabout 
1 x trampoline 
1 x random ball catcher 
1 x slide 
1 x zip wire (not in use) 
2 x cradle swings (one removed)  4 x swings (all removed) 
1 x void area which used to be a skate bowl 
1 x void where equipment has been removed 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Devonshire Park  
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Two picnic table slats are splintered and rotten. 

Replace slats on various bench and seats in park 
Low Programme of bench 

repairs ongoing 
started 

Litter bins vandalised and one needs replacing.  Tied to 
the fence.  Needs securing into the ground with 
concrete base  

Low Needs to be 
investigated 

Not yet 
started 

Various perimeter fence issues Medium Needs to be repaired Not started 
Levelling issues with soil erosion around various pieces 
of equipment 

Medium Needs to be 
addressed 

Not yet 
started 

Evidence of wetpour damage and areas requiring 
replacement 

Low Consider for 
resurfacing works 

Ongoing 

Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 18 units 
Equipment isolated    : 7 
% of equipment available for use  :  61% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  4 
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
Recommendation: Address remedial and void issues with investment funding 

Page 67



 
 

39 
 

TP-04 Devonshire Park 
  Overview including 

woodland adventure trail 

Climbing Feature 

Roundabout Slide 

Random ball catcher 

Trampoline 

Tractor springer 

Zip wire (isolated) 

Page 68



 
 

40 
 

TP-39 Elm Meadow, Winkleigh 

The play area at Elms Meadow, Winkleigh is located within the housing area.   
It is pretty poor and uninspiring.  Surfacing areas appear to be in good order but 
there are some areas of localised landscaping and soil erosion around pieces of 
equipment to be addressed. 
 
There are 4 potential pieces of equipment on this site, at the time of inspection two 
pieces of equipment were isolated/not in use :- 
 
1 x cradle swing – (tied up and not in use at time of inspection) 
1 x spinning bowl 
1 x void (previously springer) (has been removed and isolated with cone) 
1 x stepping stones 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Elm Meadow, Winkleigh 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Replacement Ledon clamps and a spring are required to 
refit the rocker body or remove the base plate from the 
ground where the void springer removed 

Low Action repair  Not yet 
started 

Elephant springer excessive play in the base clamp, 
attempt at a repair with duct tape is not working.  I 
would suggest removing springer, spring is corroded 

Low Action repair Not yet 
started 

Soil eroded around swings could cause a trip hazard Low Arrange localised 
landscape work 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  2 
% of equipment available for use  :  50% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
Recommendation : 
Complete remedial works, consider replacing springer 

Page 69



 
 

41 
 

TP-39 Elm Meadow, Winkleigh 

 

  Park overview 

Stepping Stones 

Cradle swing tied up not in use 

overview 

Springer removed void 

Spinning Bowl 

Bench seat and bin 

Page 70



 
 

42 
 

T37-001 Fountain Fields, High Bickington 

Fountain Fields play area is located within the Fountain Fields housing development.  
The play area consists of :- 
 
1 x pair of cradle swings 
1 multi play slide unit 
 
There is also a bench seat.  
The area is laid to grass which provides adequate safety surfacing but causes issues 
when accessing with mowers and strimmers and in the long term will cause wear and 
tear to the equipment. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Fountain Fields, High Bickington 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Slight corrosion on multi-play unit Low No action.  Added to 

monitor list. 
Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 2 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 

Recommendation : 
Monitor corrosion on multi-play unit. 
 
  

Page 71



 
 

43 
 

T37-001 Fountain Fields, High Bickington 

 

 

 

 

  

Pair of cradle swings 

View across play area 

Multi-play unit 

Bench seating 

Page 72



 
 

44 
 

TP-05 Geneva Court 

There are two pieces of equipment in this park:- 
1 x spring rider 
1 x basket swing 
 
The park is in generally good order although the safety surfacing is the old matting 
type and could benefit from updating with wetpour.  
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Geneva Court 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
A replacement doughnut cap needs changing as split on 
the springer 

Low Order replacement 
part 

Not yet 
started 

Ground rutted and worn near basket swing base Medium Organise local to 
landscaping 

Not yet 
started 

Two fencing slats have been removed from between 
the playarea and neighbouring fencing.  Secure panels 

Medium Organise local fencing 
works 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 2 units 
Equipment isolated     :  0 
% of equipment available for use  :  100 % 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 

 
Recommendation : 
Complete remedial works locally.  Consider this site for surface treatment.  

Page 73



 
 

45 
 

TP-05 Geneva Court 

 

 

  

Site view from neighbouring houses 

Parrot themed springer 

Basket swing 

Recent paving repairs to entrance 

Page 74



 
 

46 
 

TP-35 Golf Links Road 2, Westward Ho! 

This play area consists of the following pieces of equipment:- 

1 x roundabout   There are also two seats and a litter bin. 

The area is well used by locals and has been adopted by the local community.  Non 
standard signage has appeared in the past as well as efforts to repaint Council 
structures without permission.  There is a sensory garden, it is unlikely this was part 
of the Torridge design and was likely to have been installed locally. Potted plants and 
painted rocks have appeared, as has a fairy garden.  None of this appears to be part 
of the main infrastructure.  Articles which do not form part of the play area should be 
routinely removed, however given this has been a sensitive issue no action has been 
taken to address these issues unless they are causing a safety concern. 
The roundabout is operational but is in a very poor state of repair.   
The surface treatment of the entire area needs addressing.   
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Golf Links Road 1 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Condition of roundabout very poor base layer 
exposed – needs replacement 

Medium Monitor list No action 
taken yet 

There is a hole in the fence behind the bench Low Needs to be routine 
maintenance 

No action 
taken yet 

Corrosion on multi-play unit Low Seek fabrication 
advice?  

No action 
taken yet 

The bottom of the gate railings has corroded through.  
Advise removing gate completely 

Low Remove gate Not yet 
instructed 

Bottom tread on the tower unit steps needs replacing 
as it is rotting 

Low Remedial works – 
investigate? 

No action 
taken yet 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 1 unit 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  None  
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
Recommendation:  
Consider roundabout replacement. 
Address remedial issues until long term strategy for this area is clear. 

Page 75



 
 

47 
 

TP-35 Golf Links Road 2, Westward Ho! 

  

Poor condition entry 

signage and 

roundabout 

Sensory garden 

views 

Pair of bench 

seats 

Page 76



 
 

48 
 

TP-37 Golf Links Road 1, Westward Ho! 

This play area, known as Golf Links Road 2 adjacent to the Putting Green consists of 

the following pieces of equipment:- 

1 x multi-play unit 
1 x Spring rider 
1 x adventure trail 
2 x flat swings 
2 x cradle swings 
 
There are also seats, one bench and one seat, table and a litter bin. 
The safety surfacing is laid to lawn which is acceptable but causes some issues for 
maintenance.  Therefore suitable safety surfacing should be considered. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Golf Links Road 2, Westward Ho! 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Steps on multi play unit split and rotten Low No action taken Not yet 

started 
The gate hinged pin is wearing it is noticeable when 
opening the gate.  Advise removing the gate to prevent 
it falling 

Low Remove gate asap – 
instruct Tivoli 

Not yet 
started 

Fencing slats needs securing Low Needs contractor 
input 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 7 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100 % 
Void equipment not replaced   :  None  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
 
Recommendation:  
Address immediate remedial low priority items.   
Multi-play unit needs further inspection as may be  nearing the end of its useful life 
and this should be considered in future strategies 

  

Page 77



 
 

49 
 

TP-37 Golf Links Road 1, Westward Ho! 

  
Cradle swings (recently repaired) with 

adventure trail in background 

Animal themed springer 

Multi-play unit 

Bin and bench 

arrangement 

Page 78



 
 

50 
 

TP-21 Goodwood Park, Northam 

This area of green space is a ‘public open space’ and contains no play equipment.  It is 
located adjacent to two houses in the midst of a residential development.  

The street furniture located in this area and the level changes on site have 
deteriorated making the site unsafe and the area was locked off several months ago.   

A neighbouring property indicated an interest in purchasing the area which was 
discussed with the Estates team but dismissed.  As negotiations with this neighbour 
did not proceed and the house in question is currently on the market.  The area 
needs to be reinstated to its original condition.  

This link to google images shows how it would have looked in 2009 

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0323442,-

4.2069833,3a,75y,128.89h,79.84t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1szw68fbrtHAk842RsxCR8ew

!2e0!7i13312!8i6656 

Remedial works are required to put the area back into use including:- 

• Removal of damaged fencing 

• Removal of epicormics growth to identified tree 

• Grass cutting 

• Levelling works to surface area to remove trip hazards 

• Returfing if required 

• Instruct Tivoli to recommence inspections 
 

Recommendation :  
Ongoing repair works to get the park open are being investigated and progressed 
by Mike Crocker 

  

Page 79

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0323442,-4.2069833,3a,75y,128.89h,79.84t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1szw68fbrtHAk842RsxCR8ew!2e0!7i13312!8i6656
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0323442,-4.2069833,3a,75y,128.89h,79.84t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1szw68fbrtHAk842RsxCR8ew!2e0!7i13312!8i6656
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.0323442,-4.2069833,3a,75y,128.89h,79.84t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1szw68fbrtHAk842RsxCR8ew!2e0!7i13312!8i6656


 
 

51 
 

TP-21 Goodwood Park, Northam 

 

  

Views of Goodwood Park – at the time of 

survey closed and awaiting repair 

Page 80



 
 

52 
 

TP-22 Hanson Park, Bideford 

The play area consists of the following pieces of equipment:- 

1 x multi-play unit 
1 x cradle swing 
2 x swings 
 
There is also a bench seat.   

The area is enclosed by wooden palisade fencing which will require replacement in 

due course.  The safety surfacing is of a good standard. Residents have complained 

about traffic diverting through the area to dump rubbish in the litter bin, therefore 

this has recently been removed and will be monitored with so far no ongoing litter 

issues. 

 

 Summary of Current Issues – Hanson Park, Bideford 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The fencing section has been vandalised again it needs 
securing also 3 fencing slats are missing facing roadside 

Medium Monitoring fencing 
issues 

Ongoing 

Corrosion on slide support fixings Low Monitor – no action 
taken unless priority 
level change 

Ongoing 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 4 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Actual operating capacity   :  100% 
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation : 
Complete remedial fencing works locally and monitor litter issues 
  

Page 81



 
 

53 
 

TP-22 Hanson Park, Bideford 

  Overview of park area and wooden 

perimeter fencing 

Multi-play JCB theme slide unit 

Pair of flat swings 

Cradle Swing 

Bench seat  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 
 

54 
 

TP-32 Kingsmead Drive, Torrington 
 

This play area is located within the residential area of Kingsmead Drive.   
There are two designated areas to this green space.   
The current play space and an area which is the subject of a current planning 
application. 
 
The equipment consists of :- 

5 x educational learning boards 
1 x pair of flat swings 
1 x cradle swing 
 
This play area was part of a capital investment project in 2018 and is a good example 
of a quality play area. 
 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Kingsmead Drive, Torrington 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
There are currently no identified issues at Kingsmead Drive 
 

 
 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 8 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  

Overall condition of the Park    :   

 
Note: 
This is an excellent example of a play area.  
The area is part of an ongoing planning application to extend the current provision 
into the expansion area with an adventure trail.  This proposal has been organised 
by the Kingsmead residents and has been the subject of local fundraising efforts. 
Andrew Waite is involved in this ongoing. No further action required at this stage. 

Page 83



 
 

55 
 

TP-32 Kingsmead Drive, Torrington 

 

  

  

Educational learning boards 

Cradle Swing (left) 
Pair of flat swings (above) 

Area of expansion for 
proposed adventure trail 

Page 84



 
 

56 
 

TP-17 Northgate Play Area, Hartland 
** please note this play area is not owned by TDC** 

 
This play area is managed on behalf of Hartland Parish Council.   The equipment on 

site consists of the following:- 

1 x pair of cradle swings 
1 x infant imaginative play shelter 
1 x whale springer  1 x surfboard springer  1 x multi play slide unit 
1 x climbing frame wall unit  1 x pair of swings (isolated due to wall issues) 
 
The play area is adjacent to a number of neighbouring properties which have 
previously suffered damage to boundary walls.  The current play regulations suggests 
this presents a hazard and has been highlighted as having to be closed off.  To enable 
discussion with occupiers, the area has been partially isolated with HERAS fencing 
awaiting repair.  A builder has been appointed by the householder to inspect and 
complete remedial works to the wall and telltales have been installed on the 
occupiers side to ensure no further movement of the wall.   
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Northgate Play Area, Hartland 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Various fencing issues and needs strategic review  Medium Need strategic review Not yet started 

The gate slams dangerously shut in 2:18 seconds.  
Replace or remove gate  

Medium Remedial issue which 
should be addressed 

Not yet started 

Corrosion under platform on slide multi play unit  Medium Seek fabrication advice Not yet started 

Surface tiles uneven under units Medium Need resurfacing  Not yet started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 9 units 
Equipment isolated     :  3 units 
% of equipment available for use  :  66% 
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
Recommendation : 
Monitor completion of wall repairs to get play area back into use as soon as 
possible 
  

Page 85



 
 

57 
 

TP-17 Northgate Play Area, Hartland 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Overview of 

play area 

Cradle swings (above)   

Multi-play slide unit (below) 

Infant play shelter 

(below left) 

Climbing frame wall 

unit (below) 

Repairs to neighbouring 

wall (work in progress) 

Surfboard springer (above left) 

Whale springer (above right) 

Page 86



 
 

58 
 

TP-06 Old Town Gardens, Bideford 

The play area consists of 3 pieces of equipment:- 
 
1 x multi-play unit with slide 
1 x cradle swing 
1 x swing (currently missing) 
 
There are also 3 x bench seats and a waste bin.  The play area is enclosed by a 
mixture of wooden and bow top fencing.  The safety surfaces are old style matting 
and are starting to cause some issues.  The slide has significant corrosion. 
Equipment has been removed and not replaced. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Old Town Gardens 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Surface tiles loose and uneven in various places.   Low Actively monitoring In progress 
Exterior fence posts rotten allowing fence to move  
 

Medium Actively monitoring In progress 

The slide entrance has been orange fenced off. The 
middle slide leg has now corroded through.  Advise 
blank off tower - seek fabrication advice or remove 
slide asap 

Medium Referred to 
contractor Alvian to 
inspect for fabrication 
advice 

In progress 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 3 units 
Equipment isolated     :  1 unit (swing) 
% of equipment available for use  :  65% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  Satisfactory 
 

Recommendation : 
Arrange slide repairs and fabrication works. 
Continue monitoring longer term issues with fencing. 
Consider this site for surface treatment.   

Page 87



 
 

59 
 

TP-06 Old Town Gardens, Bideford 

  

Multi-play unit with slide 

Swing cradle  

Entrance gate with 

multi-play unit in 

background 

Bow top fencing 

enclosure 

One of several 

bench seats 

Area of void where 

equipment removed 

Page 88



 
 

60 
 

TP-33 Pathfield 
 
Pathfield is a field site rather than the traditional style play area.   
It contains a simple swing arrangement and grassed area with old style safety matting 
under.  Signage suggests no ball games are allowed although it is unclear whether 
this has been installed by Torridge.   
 
1 x flat swing 
1 x cradle swing 
 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Pathfields, Torrington 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Large gaps in between safety matting squares could 
cause a trip hazard 

Low Monitor  Ongoing 

Gates both end are not operating within specification 

 
Low Addressed as part of 

routine maintenance 
Ongoing 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 2 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100 % 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Actual operating capacity   :  100 % 
Overall condition of the Park    :  Good 
 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider safety matting replacement as part of programme of resurfacing works 
 
 
  

Page 89



 
 

61 
 

TP-33 Pathfield 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Access via grassed area between the 

two adjacent houses through farm gate 

which is kept locked (for maintenance) 

and a separate pedestrian gate 

Pair of swings – one flat and one cradle 

Grass field area 

Pathfields Play Area signage 

Page 90



 
 

62 
 

TP-16 Pollyfield, East-the-Water, Bideford 

The play area consists of two separated areas for different age ranges:- 
 
1 x show me educational board  1 x teenage shelter 
1 x multiplay unit    1 x basket swing 
1 x spinning pole    1 x multiplay unit 
1 x basket swing (isolated)  1 x grind bars 
      1 x climbing unit and net 

1 x cable runway 
 
The infant area is neatly fenced with bowtop, surfacing is mainly grass and tarmac 
with some worn areas.  There are seats, picnic benches and bins.  The cableway is 
popular but is reaching the end of its useful life.  The adjacent BMX track area is in 
the process of being redeveloped by Torridge to lease to the BMX Club and does not 
form part of this play area strategy. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Pollyfields 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
HAGS climbing unit - metal eyelets attached to chain 
ladder corroding.  Replace eyelets. 

Medium Monitor list - No 
action taken 

Not yet 
started 

The teenage shelter seating is part missing. there are 
finger sized hole entrapments within the frame 

Low No action taken Not yet 
started 

Corrosion on multi-play unit brackets.  Corrosion on 
basket swing frame 

Low Monitor corrosion Ongoing 

The cable runway cable needs tensioning.  The seat 
sleeve is also split and needs repair or replace 

Low Repair needs to be 
instructed 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 10 units total 
Equipment isolated     :  1 unit 
% of equipment available for use  :  90% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  None  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation:  
Address remedial issues above. The laid to lawn areas could benefit from some 
surface dressing with topsoil and grass seed or consider as part of a resurfacing 
strategy with wetpour.   

Page 91



 
 

63 
 

TP-16 Pollyfield, East-the-Water, Bideford 

    Overview of infant  

area (left) – Educational 

board (below) 

 

Spinning pole (left) 

Multiplay unit 

(below) 

 

Basket swing 

removed (above) 

Climbing unit and 

net (below) 

 

Teenage shelter (above left) 

Cable runway  (above) 

Basket swing (left) 

Picnic bench (right) 

 
Page 92



 
 

64 
 

TP-29 Recreation Ground, Torrington (Calf Street) 

The play area at Calf Street is also known as Recreation Ground, Torrington consists 

of several pieces of play equipment as follows:- 

1 x toddler slide 
1 x junior multi play unit with tower 
1 x multi play unit 
1 x basketball hoop frame 
4 x Swing spaces for 1 pair cradle and 1 pair flat swings – (both removed) 
1 x void area (previous unknown equipment removed) 
1 x void area (possibly bench removed) 
 
The area is currently split into two sections the play area and the skate part which are 
separated by bowtop fencing.  The skate park is the responsibility of Great Torrington 
Town Council and is not inspected by TDC.  
Entrance gates and a brick wall arrangement separate this busy play area from the 
main road.   The play area is in a conservation area.   
The area is currently under refurbishment consideration 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Recreation Ground Torrington – aka 

Calf Street 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The multi unit tower platforms need an additional 
bracket underneath to prevent floor from sagging  

Medium None – see note 
below 

See note 
below 

Large gaps in between safety matting squares could 
cause a trip hazard 

Medium 

Soil eroded around play equipment exposing concrete Medium 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 8 units 
Equipment isolated     :  4 units 
% of equipment available for use  :  50% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  2 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
Note : At the time of survey this area is being redeveloped as part of a Capital 
Investment and joint funding bid which is in the process of tender – recommend 
awaiting the outcome of the phased works and reassessing in March 2020  

Page 93



 
 

65 
 

TP-29 Recreation Ground, Torrington (Calf Street)  

 

  

Toddler Slide 

Entrance gates Two of the 

multiplay units 

Swing pairs – 

swing removed 

Void where 

equipment  removed 

Adjacent skate park 

Page 94



 
 

66 
 

TP-08 Short Close, Bideford 

There are several pieces of equipment on site including:- 

1 x woodland trail (several pieces of equipment) 
1 x slide 
2 x springers 
1 x goal mouth 
 
There is also a bench seat.  The woodland trail is in a poor state of repair and the 
wooden structures are reaching the end of their useful life.   
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Short Close 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The ply tower panels are splintered.   

 

Medium Needs further 
investigation 

Not yet 
started 

Severe corrosion on slide supports and fixings.  
Plywood sides splintered.  Decking platform unsafe, a 
lot of movement.  Surface tiles uneven in poor 
condition.   

High Needs fabrication 
works – being 
investigated by Alvian 

Ongoing 

The goal frame needs removing from site, it is not 
anchored to the ground and the bottom brace post has 
snapped off.  Remove item. 

Medium Needs to be removed 
from site as soon as 
possible  

Contractor 
Alvian 
instructed 
16/09 

Wooden equipment signs of dry rot splitting. Low Monitoring condition 
 

In progress 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 5 units 
Equipment isolated     :  1 unit (instructed removal) 
% of equipment available for use  :  80% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
*Although the majority of equipment is available for use it is in a poor condition.  It should be 
recognised the woodland trail will need replacing and when removed will leave a large void in the 
overall space – further investment should be considered 

 
Recommendation : 
Remove goal post and address corrosion issues immediately.. Consider replacement 
of the woodland trail as part of longer term investment. 

Page 95



 
 

67 
 

TP-08 Short Close, Bideford 

  Example of the woodland trail equipment 

Springers 

Slide 

Bench 

Page 96



 
 

68 
 

TP-26 St Andrews Close, Sutcombe 

This site consists of the following pieces of equipment:- 

1 x spring rider 
2 x football goals 
 
There may have been a further spring rider as the reports identify the left hand 
springer, presume the right hand one has been removed and it is no longer obvious.   
 
The area is fenced off with wooden fencing and appears to be mostly football related 
and a dog exercise area. Very uninspiring.  
 
 Summary of Current Issues – St Andrews Close 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Gate not operating within specification, not closing 
 

Low Remedial work to be 
undertaken on site 

For Tivoli 

Slight corrosion on left hand spring rider Low Monitor ongoing Monitoring 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 3units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 unit 
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
 
Recommendation : 
Review strategy for park and consider whether any additional equipment can be 
introduced.   
 
 
  

Page 97



 
 

69 
 

TP-26 St Andrews Close, Sutcombe 

  

Page 98



 
 

70 
 

TP-09 Union Close, Bideford 

The area consists of the following equipment:- 

1 x multi-play unit 
4 x stepping logs 
 
There is also an old style bench seat.  The area is enclosed by wooden palisade 
fencing on all sides which appears to be in a good state of repair but will require 
attention in due course. The equipment areas are surfaced with old style safety 
matting squares and should be considered for updating. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Union Close 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
The rotten timber edging needs replacing and the 
ground back to level reinstating to the tiles 

Medium Need to investigate 
further 

Not yet 
started 

Vegetation invading play area Low Action to be taken by 
Tivoli 

Ongoing 

Corrosion on multi play unit various places Low Monitoring  Ongoing 

Surface tiles uneven and in poor condition under units Low Monitor condition 
and consider 
resurfacing strategy 

Ongoing 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 5 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation : 
Monitor low priority items and address as required.  
Consider replacing safety surfacing as part of programme of works 

  

Page 99



 
 

71 
 

TP-09 Union Close, Bideford 

 

 

 

 

  

Multi-play unit with safety matting 

Overgrown 

vegetation 

encroaching on 

play area 

Stepping Stones 

Bench seating 

Page 100



 
 

72 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park Infants 

The popular play area consists of the following equipment:- 

1 x multi-play unit with two slide chutes 
2 x spring riders 
2 x flat swings 
2 x cradle swings 
 
There is a huge void area – unclear how many pieces of equipment have been 
removed and not replaced, it could be 3 or 4 units. 
 
The area is surfaced with old style safety matting which is causing issues and there 
are huge issues with the wooden style fencing around the perimeter.   
 
There are also 3 bench seats.   
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Victoria Park Infants 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Fencing issues – entire area – fencing posts rotten and 
missing in all areas  

Medium Review of fencing 
strategy is required 

Not yet 
started 

Cargo net frame is corroding Low Monitor In progress 

Monitoring cracks appearing in 1st and 2nd stainless 
steel slide chutes 

Medium Monitor In progress 

Surface tiles uneven – all areas Medium Requires resurfacing 
strategy 

Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 7 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  at least 4 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider replacing safety surfacing and fencing as a matter of urgency.  
  

Page 101



 
 

73 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park Infants 

  Multi-play unit with slide and chute (left) 

Area showing where equipment removed (above) 

Swing arrangement (above) 
Dolphin Springer (right) 

Page 102



 
 

74 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park Bidefort 

The popular play area known as Bidefort consists of the following equipment:- 

1 x Bidefort Play Structure (several areas isolated) 
1 x embankment slide  1 x basket net slide 
1 x playhouse   1 x basket swing 
1 x Trampoline (removed) 1 x sandpit 
1 x picnic table arrangement 
 
The structure known as Bidefort has reached the end of its useful life.  Consistent 
reports on its poor condition and regular replacement of damaged wood is ongoing.  
Several areas of the original structure have been isolated or removed completely due 
to safety issues and there have been reported incidents resulting in injuries received 
on this equipment.  The sandpit is hazardous, loose sand is abrasive and is 
transferred to other pieces of equipment which impacts their condition.   
It is also uncovered which suggests that offensive articles (drug paraphernalia) and 
animal faeces could be contained within.    There are issues with the safety matting to 
the surface area and rotting damage to the perimeter fencing.   
Please note : This review does not include the children’s paddling pool or kiosk area 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Victoria Park Bidefort 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Fencing issues Medium Needs complete 

review of this area 
Not yet 
started Safety matting issues Low 

Bidefort – end of useful life Low 

Trampoline – removed – not replaced Low 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 7 units 
Equipment isolated     :  High % of Bidefort structure 
% of equipment available for use  :  Less than 50% of area 
Void equipment not replaced   :  at least 50%   
Actual operating capacity   :  Less than 50% 
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider urgent review of this area as part of investment strategy.  

Page 103



 
 

75 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park Bidefort 

 

  

Views of Bidefort 

Basket net slide 

Sandpit 

Embankment slide 

Picnic tables Basket Swing  

Playhouse 

Page 104



 
 

76 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park, Juniors 

The popular play area known as Victoria Park, Juniors  consists of the following 

equipment:- 

1 x Multi-play unit 
1 x Witches hat swing frame (unit removed) 
4 x flat swings 
 
There are also a number of benches and litter bins. 
There are issues with safety surfacing and level changes. 
The wooden perimeter fence was in a poor state of repair, changes to legislation 
meaning that a fenced area was no longer a requirement so we removed the fence 
completely and this has not been replaced. 
 
 Summary of Current Issues – Victoria Park, Juniors 

Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Corrosion on multi play brackets and slide support Medium Monitoring In progress 
Surface area issues with trip hazards Medium Consider resurfacing Not yet 

started 

Wire fencing protruding in places Low Remedial repairs Not yet 
started 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 6 units 
Equipment isolated     :  1 unit 
% of equipment available for use  :  83% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  1 units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  SATISFACTORY 
 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider reviewing surfacing and investment in removed items in line with other 
areas of the park.    

 
  

Page 105



 
 

77 
 

TP-10 Victoria Park, Juniors 

 

  Multi-play unit 

Swing pair arrangement 

Witches hat (removed) 

Benches 

Page 106



 
 

78 
 

TP-38 Village Green, Westward Ho! 

There are two designated play spaces on the Village Green at Westward Ho!  
(1) Green Play Park & (2) Village Green (see map TP-38 for identification)   
The following pieces of equipment are located on site:- 
 
1 x Hags spinning bowl   1 x climbing unit 
1 x swing     1 x Log adventure trail  
1 x spider web vertical climbing wall 1 x boat themed play ship  
 
The area has been developed in two stages.  The Green Play Park installed with 
equipment from HAGS has had significant issues with equipment installed not being 
fit for purpose and not withstood the associated location conditions. Issues with the 
manufacturer HAGS are yet to be fully resolved. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Village Green 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Village Green Area – with playship 
Monitor surfacing as the wetpour edge is starting to lift 
in front of the play boat 

Low On the monitor list Monitoring 

Slight wood rot base of play boat Low On the monitor list Monitoring 
Plan to change the platform – on the play boat  as it is 
deteriorating to prevent splintering 

Low Consider as 
replacement strategy 

Not yet 
started 

Green Play Park 
corrosion on climbing unit frame Low On the monitor list Monitoring 
Issues with spinning bowl base being addressed with 
manufacturer HAGS 

Low Addressed with HAGS 
– no positive response 

In progress 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 6 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100 % 
Void equipment not replaced   :  units  
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation : 
Monitor low priority items and address as required.  
Resolve issues with HAGS manufacturer  

Page 107



 
 

79 
 

TP-38 Village Green, Westward Ho! 

  HAGS spinning bowl (Left) 

and swing arrangement 

(below) 
Climbing frame unit 

(below) 

Spider Web Vertical 

climbing wall 

Log adventure trail 

(above) 

Modern chair seat 

(below) 

Boat themed playship  

Page 108



 
 

80 
 

TP-40 Westcots Drive, Winkleigh 

Equipment in this play area consists of the following:- 

3 x spinning tops 
1 x pair of cradle swings 
1 x multi-play unit 
1 x roundabout 
1 x elephant springer 
 
The play area is located within the residential housing area and at the rear of the 
local school.  The site is safely enclosed by wooden panel and palisade fencing.  One 
of the surfaces under the equipment has been upgraded to tiger mulch with the 
remainder being old safety matting.  The multi-play unit is causing ongoing issues but 
with continual repairs appears to be serviceable.  
There is bench seating in this play area. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Westcots Drive, Winkleigh 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
Gaps need filling in between the tiles around the  
multi-unit.  Trip hazard within falling space of 
equipment 

Medium Consider for 
programme of 
resurfacing works 

Ongoing 

Cradle swing galv chain linkage is wearing.  Replace 
chains 40% wear 

Medium Priority changed to 
medium – part of 
routine repairs 

Ongoing 

Damage and splitting on wooden swing frame Low Monitor ongoing Ongoing 

Gate not operating within specification Low can be addressed as 
part of routine repairs 

Ongoing 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : 8 units 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
% of equipment available for use  :  100% 
Void equipment not replaced   :  0 units  
Actual operating capacity   :  100 % 
Overall condition of the Park    :  GOOD 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider safety resurfacing to upgrade old style safety matting   

Page 109



 
 

81 
 

TP-40 Westcots Drive, Winkleigh 

  Site Overview 

Stepping Stone 

one of 3 on site 

Pair of cradle swings 

TK Play Multi-play unit 

Roundabout 

Elephant springer 

Wooden style 

bench 

Page 110



 
 

82 
 

TP-18 Woodland View, Holsworthy 

This uninspiring area is known as ‘public open space’ and not technically a play area, 

although it is inspected regularly for safety risk.   

The area consists of:- 

Open space / turfed lawn area 
Specimen trees 
Enclosed by a mixture of wooden palisade, brickwork and bowtop fencing 
 
It was intended as public open space only and was furnished with wooden animal 
bench seating intended for small children.  These were found to be in a poor state of 
repair and decay and have recently been removed (picture example shows). 
 
The area is subject to a grasscutting and hedge boundary regime.   
There have been frequent issues with dog fouling, there is no dog waste bin. 
 

 Summary of Current Issues – Woodland View 
Identified Priority Action taken Status 
 
No identified issues at the current time 
 

 
Summary  
Number of pieces of equipment   : None 
Equipment isolated     :  None 
Overall condition of the Park    :  POOR 
 
 
Recommendation : 
Consider future strategy for this area 
Consider provision of dog bin depending on strategy review  
 
 

 
 
  

Page 111



 
 

83 
 

TP-18 Woodland View, Holsworthy 

 

  

Overview of public open space with 

previous wooden animal seating  

Page 112



 
 

84 
 

  

Page 113



 
 

85 
 

Appendix A 

  

Page 114



 
 

86 
 

  

Page 115



 
 

87 
 

Appendix B 

  

Page 116



 
 

88 
 

  

Page 117



 
 

89 
 

Appendix C 

  

Page 118



 
 

90 
 

  

Page 119



 
 

91 
 

Appendix D 

  

Page 120



 
 

92 
 

  

Page 121



 
 

93 
 

Appendix E 

  

Page 122



 
 

94 
 

  

Page 123



 
 

95 
 

Appendix F 

  

Page 124



 
 

96 
 

  

Page 125



 
 

97 
 

Appendix G 

  

Page 126



 
 

98 
 

  

Page 127



 
 

99 
 

Appendix H 

  

Page 128



 
 

100 
 

  

Page 129



 
 

101 
 

References 

 
The play area detail contained in this document can be found in electronic format  
In this folder location:- 
 
T:\Property_and_Procurement\Play Areas_TDC\Strategy overview 
 
The main document is called Strategy document outline 
The appendices and supporting documents are also in this folder 

Page 130


	Agenda
	6 Draft Play Area Strategy
	Draft Play Area Strategy
	2019 Play Area Condition Survey_optimised


